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2008 heritage Homes Tour House Chairs:
Barbara Bridges, Sherry Brown, Ellen Lampl & Craig Denham, Courtney Hoffman, Amy 
Hornaday, Kris Hyatt, Cate Maloney, Carl McQueary, Angela Reed, Lin Team

2008 heritage Homes Tour Committee Chairs
Homes Tour Chair.............................................................................. Kristy Ozmun
Heritage Society.................................................. Jacqui Schraad, Executive Director
House Selection........................................................................... Shelly Hemingson
Logistics................................................................. Clarke Hammond, Michael Strutt
Public Relations............................................................................ Michele Damerau
Research ....................................... Marty Moulthrop, Barbara Bridges, Peter Maxson
Ticket Sales...............................................................Amy Erben, Courtney Hoffman
Sponsorship..........................................................................................Matt Curtis
Volunteers......................................................................................Paula Aaronson
Print Materials.............................................................................. Shoehorn Design
Moonlight & Martinis Party............................................................ Shelly Hemingson

About the Heritage Society 
For over fifty years, the Heritage Society of Austin has been Austin’s oldest and largest 
preservation non-profit group, with the stated mission of promoting the recognition and 
experience of Austin’s diverse cultural heritage through the preservation of historic trea-
sures and places. Since its founding in 1953, the Society has made grants and loans of 
over $2.8 million for restoration, education and other projects. Society programs include 
the Heritage Homes Tour, Pioneer Farms, CIRCA Antiques Show, the Preservation Awards 
Ceremony, and ongoing advocacy and educational tours and events for our membership 
and the public. For more information about the Heritage Society or Heritage Homes Tour, 
contact Jacqui Schraad at 512-474-5198 or visit www.heritagesocietyaustin.org.
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Membership Benefits 
✶ Enjoy tours of landmark homes

✶ Members only parties at landmark properties

✶ Supporting advocacy to preserve Austin

✶ Fun volunteer opportunities

Join the Heritage Society of Austin

As a non-profit, community-based organization, we count on our membership sup-

port to help keep us involved in preservation efforts that benefit greater Austin. In 

fact, we have returned more than $2.8 million to the community for these efforts.

Membership to the Heritage Society offers you:

✶ HSA’s newsletter, Preservation Austin

✶ Discounts on HSA publications and events

✶ Invitations to unique social events

✶ Programs presented by leading preservationists and historians

✶ Contribute to the community by preserving its historic and cultural resources

Sign me up as a member of the Heritage Society of Austin:
❑  Preservationist $5,000	 ❑  Inherit Austin $125/$95
❑  Benefactor $2,500	 ❑  Partner $100
❑  Heritage Circle $1,000	 ❑  Family/Dual $50
❑  Advocate $500	 ❑  Contributor $35
❑  Friend $250	 ❑  Other_______________

Name......................................................................................................

Address...................................................................................................

City.................................................. State....................Zip..........................

Daytime Phone..............................Evening Phone.........................................

Fax................................................. Email..................................................

❑  My check is enclosed (Please make checks payable to Heritage Society of Austin)

Please charge to my:    ❑ Visa    ❑ Mastercard    ❑ AmEx

Card Number:.................................................... Exp. Date..........................

Your Signature:.........................................................................................

Thank you for your support!
Mail to: Heritage Society of Austin, P.O. Box 2113, Austin, Texas 78768

Get involved.

Join US.



	 Following World War II, a convergence 

of circumstances gathered into what has be-

come known as Mid-Century Modernism in 

the United States of 1945-1965. Many re-

turning service men and women were now 

worldlier after seeing other cultures and dif-

ferent modes of living, while at the same time 

they were optimistic and ready for a bright 

new future. They 

also generated an 

unprecedented de-

mand for new hous-

ing and the furniture 

and household items 

to accompany these 

new houses within 

a growing middle 

class. Designers and 

architects were able 

to capture their imagination with modern, 

future-looking ideals and forms.

	 At the same time, Modernism had 

matured in the years preceding the war in 

many venues, most famously the Bauhaus in 

Germany, and the subsequent International 

Style of architecture had spread its influence 

of simplicity, honesty and clarity through 

buildings that transcended established cul-

tural traditions and forms of building that 

emphasized modern materials of glass, steel 

and concrete. These ideals permeated archi-

tecture from large workers’ housing projects 

and commercial and industrial buildings 

through to residential applications.

	 The influence of revolutionary German-

born Modernism tempered with regional 

materials and responses to climate were 

combined with middleclass sensibilities and 

budgets to produce the characteristic Mid-

Century Modern 

home that continues 

to resonate with 

many of us today. 

There is an aesthetic 

variety in homes at 

this time that ranges 

from the more mod-

ern “off the shelf 

industrial” Charles 

and Ray Eames’ 

House, 1949 (a part of the Case Study 

Houses series 1945-1966 of Arts & Archi-

tecture magazine) and extends through to 

Frank Lloyd Wright’s organic inspired forms 

of his Usonian Houses, but they share sev-

eral basic attributes that permeate many of 

the homes of this time.

	 Basic tenets found in many Mid-Centu-

ry Modern homes can be attributed to such 

architects as Walter Gropius, Richard Neu-

tra, RM Schindler and Frank Lloyd Wright 

among others who began developing new 

The Shaping of the Mid-Century 
Modern Home in AustinATOMIC AUST IN :

M ID - CENTURY
MODERN
President-elect Dwight Eisenhower had just returned from Korea. A first-class stamp was 

3 cents. America had just seen its first magazine-style TV show, something called “The 

Today Show” starring Dave Garroway. And “Singin’ in the Rain” was playing at the 

Paramount Theatre across the street from Scarbrough’s Department Store. 

It was 1952, and all over Austin homes were being built in the outlying suburbs of Barton 

Hills, Highland Hills and Tarrytown for a new generation of middle-class Austinites, not 

long back from the war and ready to start families, who wanted something totally mod-

ern, something cool, something ring-a-ding glamorous. But because this was Austin, they 

also wanted houses that were casual, comfortable and suited to our laid-back lifestyle. 

What they got was low-slung, mid-century blend of a machine-age aesthetic and Hill 

Country style expressed in cedar, site-quarried stone and glass window walls carefully 

positioned against the harsh Texas sun. They got rooflines that were flat, gently pitched 

or jutting wing-like into the sky, and carports and clean, crisp lines. And, sometimes, they 

even got that great new invention, air conditioning. 

A few hundred of these homes remain in Austin today, a testament to a time of great 

hope, a time when kids still played in their front yards on spring afternoons and neigh-

bors pulled grills and lawn chairs into cul-de-sacs on summer evenings to share burgers, 

beer and laughter.

The Heritage Society of Austin pays homage to the city’s modernist roots and honors 

some of Austin’s premier mid-century architects during the Mid-Century Modern-themed 

16tth annual Heritage Homes Tour. We hope you enjoy this nostalgic trip back to Austin 

in the 1950s. 

By Sydney Rubin

A major ambition 
was to establish a 

direct connection of 
interior spaces to the 
exterior landscape.

By Riley Triggs



relationships of space in houses.

	 A major ambition was to establish a 

direct connection of interior spaces to the 

exterior landscape. This is seen as early as 

1922 in Schindler’s own home that places 

the same value on interior and exterior 

space by fully in-

tegrating building 

and landscape 

with large movable 

glass walls. This 

was also important 

to Neutra who be-

lieved that we had 

an innate need to 

be attached physi-

cally to the land-

scape and nature because of the tie of our 

genetic code back to the savannahs of east 

Africa in his notion of “applied biology”.

	 This also lead to the predominance of 

the horizontal in Neutra’s and others’ work 

of the time, because it was the flat hori-

zon and distant mountains that formed the 

boundaries and ability to gauge distance in 

the space of our ancestors. This emphasis 

on the horizontal also pushes our gaze and 

sense of place further out into the landscape 

and is a central concept in the work of 

Wright with his low ceilings and extended 

horizontal planes.

	 Also evident in many homes of the 

era are open, flowing spaces between pro-

grams, or functions, in the home. Gropius 

created a single component of dining-living 

space in his own house that helped the inte-

rior space seem larger, and Schindler broke 

down conventional notions of rooms in the 

house when he created a “utility room” that 

combined the family kitchen into the rest of 

the house which blurred the distinction be-

tween areas ser-

vice and served. 

These open plans 

with room or space 

dividers instead of 

walls and visual 

access between 

rooms and the ex-

terior effectively in-

creases the space 

of a house while 

maintaining low actual square footages. 

Using interplay between these open spaces 

and the more protected, closed areas of ref-

uge in the bedrooms further heightened the 

spatial effect.

	 Material expression is another hallmark 

of the time. Many architects brought exterior 

materials inside and extended surfaces from 

interior to exterior in continuous planes. 

Rock and brick walls run seamlessly past ex-

terior glass walls and large overhangs carry 

exposed structural wood and metal decking 

past high windows. The hallmark post and 

beam construction are emphasized in large 

cantilevered overhangs that not only protect 

the large expanses of glass, but further the 

feeling of movement and connection to the 

exterior. Horizontal bands of sheet glass 

and casement windows provide views unin-

terrupted by mullions and allow for natural 

ventilation.

	 Creators of what is commonly referred 

to as California Modern, those architects 

who practiced extensively in California, 

along with the mainstreaming efforts of Cali-

fornia builder, Joseph Eichler and publica-

tions such as the Case Study Houses, had 

a great influence on the architects of the 

entire United States, and direct connections 

informed several prominent local architects 

in Texas and Austin.

	 One of the first to bring the more for-

mally modern aesthetic to town was Chester 

Nagel who studied at Harvard and then 

worked with Bauhaus founder Walter Gro-

pius. Another architect who was able to 

briefly bring distinctly modern residences 

to town was Harwell Hamilton Harris, who 

later would become director of the School 

of Architecture at the University of Texas 

at Austin from 1951 to 1955 and worked 

with Richard Neutra and RM Schindler in 

Los Angeles where he absorbed the modern 

architectural language.

	 Two other notable architects were Aus-

tin natives and partners Charles Granger 

and Arthur Fehr. Granger’s sensibilities 

were shaped by his time working with Rich-

ard Neutra and studying where other nota-

bles Charles and Ray Eames had just left at 

Cranbrook Academy of Art. Granger then 

worked as a designer in the office of long 

time instructor and president of Cranbrook, 

Finnish-born modernist Eliel Saarinen before 

bringing his modern ideas home to Austin. 

Fehr was educated at University of Texas at 

Austin as well as Columbia University, New 

York University and the Beaux-Arts Institute 

of Design in New York. The two teamed up 

after the war to design the very modern Rob-

ert Mueller Municipal Airport and O. Henry 

Junior High School.

	 One of Austin’s favorite Mid-Century 

architects and builder-developer, A.D. (Ar-

thur Dallas) Stenger attended the University 

of Texas at Austin just prior to Harris’ tenure 

there. If Harris had arrived just one year ear-

lier, Stenger probably wouldn’t have been 

driven out for his “outlandish” designs with 

operable glass walls and modernist sensi-

bilities. This allowed him, however, to capi-

talize on the growing demand for modern 

homes in Austin and to become one of the 

more prolific local Mid-Century architects.

	 With clean, open spatial arrangements 

and comfortable materiality and interplay 

between interior and exterior, the classic 

Mid-Century Modern home has a sophisti-

cated hominess that is warm and inviting. 

Local architects were able to incorporate 

the ideals and idioms of the larger Modern 

movement with the particulars of the Texas 

climate to create a fine collection of work 

that captures the energy, exuberance and 

optimism of the mid twentieth century right 

here in Austin.

Many architects brought 
exterior materials inside 
and extended surfaces 
from interior to exterior 
in continuous planes.



	 This house is named for the original own-
ers, the Duncans, and for the current owners, 
who have done so much to preserve it, while 
putting their own stamp on it. It was built in 
1951 by Alex and Jerry Duncan, who occupied 
it for fifty years before selling it to the Bucks. 
The designer was George Smith Wright, who 
studied architecture at UT, worked as a drafts-
man in the office of Fehr & Granger Architects 
in Austin, and went on to have a successful firm 
of his own. He was also dean of the School of 
Architecture at UT Arlington. Alex Duncan was 
a long-time real estate professional in Austin 
until his retirement 
in 1990.
	 Like other residences on today’s tour, this 
house has a flat roof, walls of glass across the 
back of the structure, aluminum casement win-
dows, and a carport with pole columns, as well 
as exterior cone lighting, vertical redwood sid-
ing and a center stone fireplace. These original 
features are visible today, along with the origi-
nal iron gates, stone fence, hardwood floors 
and two original bathroom sinks that have 
been moved to the new upstairs baths.
	 When the present owners acquired the 
house in 2001, it contained 1600 square feet, 
with two bedrooms and bathrooms, and had 

never been renovated. Working with architect 
Jay Farrell, AIA, they added an upstairs which 
includes two bedrooms/baths and laundry 
room. This accomplished the goal of providing 
more space while keeping to the home’s origi-
nal footprint. The original bedroom wing was 
redesigned to create a master suite. The gal-
ley style kitchen was retained, but redesigned 
and opened to communicate with the dining 
room. One of the more dramatic changes was 
to push the window wall of the living/dining 
room back four feet and pen it to the rear yard 
with floor to ceiling glass. The project was com-
pleted last year with a second phase including 
addition of studio building and pool.
	 Thanks to these sympathetic alterations, 
this home is now able to be enjoyed by a 21st 
century family. 

–Marty Moulthrop 

	 The Granger House was built in 1952 
as the personal residence of Charles Granger, 
principal of Fehr and Granger Architects, an 
Austin firm known for its many commercial and 
residential Mid-Century Modern buildings. This 
house is an excellent example of the style. Its 
clean lines, near absence of ornament, privacy 
toward the street, rear walls of glass, open 
plan and diffusion of boundaries between in-
side and outside are all typical of the style and 
are handled in a way sensitive to the site.
	 The 1950's saw the introduction of many 
new materials and building methods and this 
house helped introduce some of these to Austin. 
The use of corrugated cement-asbestos panels 
provides a virtually maintenance-free exterior 
skin while at the same time offering interesting 
visual texture especially evident when raked by 
sunlight Whole walls of lightweight aluminum 
casement windows afford maximum ventila-
tion possibilities and also sweeping views into 
the live oaks of the back yard. Other interest-
ing features include a cantilevered concrete 
fireplace hearth, wire glass risers in the up-
per run of the stairway, a stair landing hung/
cantilevered over an exterior planting bed, 
a redwood ceiling in the foyer which passes 
over window walls to become soffit for the roof 

overhangs, a cantilevered built-in dining room 
buffet and eight foot wide wood framed glass 
sliding doors to the screened porch
	 The current owners purchased the house 
in 1998. To accommodate the owners’ pro-
grammatic needs, the kitchen area, upper 
level bedroom wind and downstairs apartment 
were gutted and redesigned. Great efforts 
were made to keep new elements sympathetic 
to the old and there are no changes to the 
house footprint or exterior wall elevations. The 
original roof had leaked and as a result some 
interior framing had rotted; a new membrane 
roof replaced the original gravel roof. Parts of 
the house were stripped to the studs for repairs 
and all new electrical and plumbing systems 
installed. The mechanical system was also re-
placed. The laundry room and kitchen spaces 
were combined and reworked with new cabi-
nets, appliances and finishes. Outside, a nar-
row walk from the street to the front door was 
removed and replaced with an entry terrace, 
and a terrace was created at the rear yard to 
establish a level area near the houses and ex-
tend the architectural vocabulary out from the 
building.
      The Granger House has been awarded 
Austin Landmark status and, thanks to the ef-

forts of the current own-
ers, it is now listed on 
the National Register of 
Historic Places.

–Jay Farrell

The Granger House   805 West 16th Street
Owners: Jeff Harper & Mark Seeger   built: 1952 

Duncan-Buck house   3411 clearview drive
Owners: rob & vicki buck   built: 1951 
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	 Edith Ritter had wanted to live on the 
lake since she met her husband Armin on Lake 
Austin in the early 1930s. When Armin retired 
from his A.H. Ritter Grocery on Manor Road, 
she got her wish. The Ritters had purchased 
the lot at 2700 Scenic Drive in 1954, paying 
$10,000 for 100 feet of lakeside property, 
and retired there in 1956.
	 Because Mrs. Ritter so greatly admired ar-
chitect Charles Granger’s work, the firm of Fehr 
and Granger was chosen to build the house. 
The house, built of adobe brick, is minimalist 
in style. The clean lines, lack of ornamentation, 
flat roof, and extensive use of glass are rep-
resentative of the Mid-Century Modern style. 
The inside walls are also built with adobe brick 
and the overhead beams, of which the archi-
tect was very proud, were trucked in from the 
Northwest. Huge sliding-glass doors allowing 
access to the outdoors from three of the rooms 
also exhibited the Modernist desire to integrate 
the house with the landscape around it. Be-
cause the home is built on lake marshland, the 
builders took three months to produce a foun-
dation they felt would hold the house. The very 
large overhang on the west side of the house 
was designed by Granger to give some protec-

tion from the west sun because there were no 
trees between the house and the lake. 
	 Thomas and Nancy Ritter Rodman, be-
came the house’s current owners when Mrs. Rit-
ter, Nancy’s mother, moved out in 1987. They 
have made few changes to the original house. 
One of the very heavy sliding glass doors was 
replaced with a glass door that was easier to 
open and the very small kitchen was remod-
eled into a kitchen/dining room by removing a 
wall to one of the original bedrooms. 

–Barbara Bridges

                                                                 

	 When Don and Arwanna (Nan) Abel 
commissioned architect J. Eugene McKee to 
build them a home on this lot on Barranca Cir-
cle in 1960, they were part of a post-war move 
to the city’s outlying suburbs. Abel had started 
a stationery business in Austin some decades 
before, and by the 1950s it had expanded 
into Abel Stationers & Office Outfitters, offer-
ing supplies, printing services, office machines, 
and furnishings for businesses, schools, banks 
and other institutions. 
	 The house was built on a hilly, oak-filled 
corner lot and McKee situated it diagonally, 
facing southeast toward downtown. The Abels 
wanted top quality and they got it—Phillipine 
mahogany was used for all doors and interior 
trim, walnut paneling in several areas—and all 
the wood was custom-milled. For the princely 
sum of $75.00 they were able to have built-
in hi-fi speakers in three locations around the 
house. The native-stone fireplace wall features 
a concrete canti-levered hearth on the living 
room side. True to its Mid-Century Modern 
roots, the house features almost no traditional 
ornamentation. The full-width concrete porch 
on the lower level is a simple slab and the liv-
ing and dining rooms above it are supported 
by plain support posts. Both levels boast walls 

of windows, tying the indoors and outdoors to-
gether in any season.
	 When the present owners Mark and Tri-
cia Traeger bought the house from the Abel 
estate, they were delighted to find the wood 
floors, paneling and interior trim intact, and 
even some of the Abels’ period furniture. The 
kitchen includes the original Formica counter-
tops, cupboards and range. The main support 
beam is a single length of Douglas fir. A major 
alteration was done in 1989, when the Abels 
added the gable and skylights. The Traegers 
have replaced the formerly green plastic sky-
lights with white ones, allowing more light to 
enter. Note the one-of-a-kind chandelier in the 
dining room, which was designed by the cur-
rent owner. It features 72 light rods and was 
inspired by a “Sputnik” model from the 1960s 
by Light-o-lier Company.
	 The Abel House is a pristine example 
of Mid-Century Modern; its clean lines, open 
floor plan and natural setting ensure it will be 
enjoyed by generations to come.

–Marty Moulthrop

Abel House   3400 barranca circle
Owners: mark & tricia traeger   built: 1960 

ritter house   2700 scenic drive
Owners: thomas & nancy rodman   built: 1956 
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	 When R. Earl Dillard and wife Patsy 
moved from their rental home in Travis Heights, 
they chose to build in the much farther out 
Balcones Park Subdivision. They moved into 
their first and only house in 1953 and lived 
there for one month short of 54 years. Earl, a 
graduate of UT’s School of Architecture, was a 
self-employed architect who worked out of the 
house. He designed a wide variety of buildings 
including homes, offices, schools, commercial 
buildings, a country club, and even a jail; but 
his favorite projects were the 22 churches he 
designed. Patsy was a kindergarten teacher at 
Tarrytown Day Kindergarten and Good Shep-
herd School. Earl and Patsy and their son and 
two daughters loved the view from their house 
and the fact that the houses were not “crammed 
together” like they were closer to town. Their 
west property line was at the Austin city limits.
	 Earl greatly admired California Modern-
ist architect Richard Neutra and was influenced 
by him when he designed his house. Earl and 
Patsy cleared the property themselves, and the 
home as originally built was a 1,250 square 
foot, one-story, two-bedroom house set into 
the hill. Earl, a great lover of gardening and 
the outdoors, laid out all the terraces and the 
brick walls in the yard and the house was de-

signed to preserve the many trees that filled the 
property. The flat roof, extensive use of glass 
in floor-to ceiling windows and 8-foot sliding 
glass doors, casement windows in aluminum 
frames in some rooms, inside walls of elm, 
redwood beams, and redwood ceilings in 
the living-room/dining room all show the Mid-
Century Modern influence. The outer walls are 
built of Mexican brick and board and batten 
redwood with strips of glass alternating with 
the brick on the side. The house as built had a 
glass corner that was replaced with a redwood 
column some years later because it didn’t work 
structurally. In 1969, the Dillards built an addi-
tion that added a new master bedroom closer 
to the street and an architect’s office below. 
	 The current owners have remodeled parts 
of the home to provide additional space, to 
comply with current code requirements, and to 
make needed repairs. The kitchen was remod-
eled to add a pantry, dining area, and laundry 
room. The existing brick walls and redwood 
ceiling were retained and aluminum-framed 
windows and sliding doors were added. The 
master bathroom was remodeled and en-
larged by about 5 feet by pushing it onto the 
deck. Because the wood was compromised, 
the Houser’s replaced the redwood cantile-

vers under the master 
bedroom, bath and deck 
with new steel structures 
and new steel structure 
was added at the patio 
door and windows. To 
comply with current code 
requirements, the glass 
“walls” in the master bed-
room, downstairs office, 
and living room were 
replaced and new glass 
doors were added to the 
main entry and kitchen. 

–Barbara Bridges

	 When Henry and Mary Goldsmith de-
cided to make their move from Tarrytown to 
a new house on Balcones Drive, Mrs. Gold-
smith sought out internationally-recognized 
Austin architect Roland Gommel Roessner and 
landscape architect C. Coatsworth Pinkney to 
design their new home. Henry Goldsmith was 
an insurance agent with the Southwest Life In-
surance Company. Mary, a full-time housewife, 
was very much involved in the planning of the 
house and used her degree in Home Economics 
to decorate it. The couple eventually divorced, 
but Mrs. Goldsmith remained in the house until 
1966.
	 The home, situated on 1.5 acres, has 
two living areas – one a combination dining/
family room with a fireplace and built-in media 
storage, the other a living/conversation room 
with a stone water feature that allowed wa-
ter to trickle down into a fish pond. Architect 
Roessner was said to have a Modernist style 
influenced by the Texas countryside. The large 
glass windows, light-colored stone used for the 
outside walls and in some interior walls, the 
exposed beams, built-in cabinets, light-colored 
terrazzo floors, and overall illusion of large 
open spaces were typical of his work. The 

house had whole-house air conditioning and 
an intercom system.
	 In 1969, Julian and Anice Read pur-
chased the house. Julian was President and 
founder of Read-Poland Associates, a public 
relations/public affairs consulting firm particu-
larly known for their work with politicians such 
as Jim Wright, John Connally, and President 
Lyndon Baines Johnson. Anice, who died in 
2000, worked for a quarter of a century in 
preservation. She served as both a member 
and Director of the Texas Historical Commis-
sion and was known as “Dr. Downtown” be-
cause she directed the revitalization of over 50 
cities across Texas through the Historical Com-
mission’s Main Street Program. She received a 
lifetime achievement award from the National 
Trust for her work with the Main Street Program 
and THC’s Anice Read Texas Main Street Cen-
ter is named in her honor.
	 The house, still occupied by Julian Read, 
remains largely unchanged after half a centu-
ry, excepting interior decoration, reflecting the 
Reads’ respect for its architectural uniqueness. 
Interior native stone and wood panel walls and 
beams, along with the terrazzo floors, all are 
original. The Goldsmith-Read house, together 

with the equally pre-
served Dr. Seldon Bag-
gett residence next door 
to the north, represent 
the only remaining his-
toric cluster of Roessner-
designed structures built 
along Balcones Drive in 
the mid-fifties.

–Barbara Bridges

goldsmith-read house   3702 balcones
Owner: julian read   built: 1953

dillard house   4506 crestway drive
Owners: sloan houser & peggy hamilton-houser   built: 1953 
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	 This residence is part of the legacy left by 
Arthur Dallas Stenger, a colorful and eccentric 
architect and builder who was perhaps Aus-
tin’s original designer of Mid-Century Modern 
homes. A. D. Stenger was born in Dallas in 
1920, the son of an architect. He served in 
both the Army and the Navy in World War II, 
after which he came to Austin to study archi-
tecture at UT. With the press of the post-war 
housing boom, Stenger began designing and 
building houses as a student; he eventually got 
his architect’s license but never got around to 
graduating. Stenger was well aware that re-
turning veterans were greatly in need of mod-
erately priced homes and he had his ideas on 
how to build them. However, FHA loan policies 
at that time had design restrictions that put limi-
tations on the kind of houses Stenger wanted to 
build, so he began to buy land in Barton Hills, 
Rollingwood and Westlake Hills, and built his 
own homes to sell, one at a time. Some of his 
customers included Frank and Sue McBee, 
Cactus Pryor and John Henry Faulk. 
	 Another buyer was Robert J. Vore, who 
was a City power plant operator. He and his 

wife Berta were to reside at 2405 Ridgeview 
Road for over 40 years. In 2003, Berta Vore, 
now a widow, sold the house to the second 
owner, who replaced the deteriorated flooring 
with bamboo and added a dishwasher and a 
new front door. Two years later they sold to 
a third owner, from whom the present owner 
purchased it in 2006. Although some updating 
has been done by previous owners, the house 
still boasts original tile in the foyer and red-
wood trim in the interior. Many other original 
features remain, including the pull-down light 
fixtures, vanities, sinks and kitchen cabinetry.
	 The Vore House nestles comfortably in its 
natural setting. The front of the structure is very 
private, with the natural stone wall on the car-
port’s façade. In contrast, the back wall of the 
living room is mostly glass, opening the view 
to the rear of the property – a characteristic of 
Mid-Century Modern design.

–Marty Moulthrop

vore house   2405 ridgeview road
Owner: sydney rubin   built: 1958

robnett house   204 mcconnell drive
Owners: craig denham & ellen lampl   built: 1959 

	 Early in the Cold War period, retired 
Air Force Colonel Everett V. Robnett and his 
wife, Juanita, built their house on this shady 
street in the hills off Bee Cave Road. It was 
designed by architect Bill Coleman, who 
worked on several custom Mid-Century 
Modern homes in the same neighborhood 
during the late 1950s. The Robnetts lived 
here for over 25 years, during which time 
Robnett served several years as Fire Mar-
shall of West Lake Hills.
	 Then, as now, the house featured 
clean lines throughout, post-and-beam con-
struction, vaulted ceilings and cantilevered 
beams, walls of glass and a “floating” 
fireplace. Another unusual feature was 
the integration of the living/dining and 
kitchen areas, common fifty years later, but 
quite a departure at that time. The home 
retains many original features, including 
the mahogany wood paneling throughout 
the living/dining/kitchen areas, tile and 
fixtures in the two original bathrooms, jal-
ousie windows, doors and door hardware, 
and the lighting in the children’s bedrooms. 

Alterations and improvements have been 
done by the current and previous owners 
with an eye to complimenting the original 
design and era of the house and preserva-
tion of period details. The hot water and 
mechanical systems have been updated 
with green living in mind. The garage has 
been converted to a new master bedroom. 
Note the large and inviting concrete deck 
on the front of the home, which was com-
pleted by a previous owner. 
	 The most unusual and intriguing 
original feature is the nuclear fallout shelter. 
It was discovered by the owners and ap-
pears to be in its original condition. It is 
stocked full of supplies and is a true time 
capsule of the Cold War era.

–Marty Moulthrop
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	 It was 1946 -- World War II had finally 
ended the previous year and everywhere the 
sound of hammers pounding nails was heard. 
A booming post-war economy and plentiful 
labor supply meant that young couples could 
begin looking for a place to build their dream 
home. As their daughter tells it, Arthur and 
Margaretha Lockenvitz set out for a drive in the 
hills west of Austin on the very day that gas 
rationing ended and discovered this beautiful 
property in the trees. To get there they had to 
take Bee Cave Road, since the Emmet Shelton 
Bridge had not yet been constructed. Not until 
several years later, when the bridge was fin-
ished, did they start building their home.
	 Arthur Lockenvitz, a physics professor 
at UT, had very definite ideas about his new 
home. He designed and contracted it himself, 
even working on the construction. The present 
owner characterizes its style as a Texas re-
sponse to the famous Los Angeles “Case Study 
Houses”, specifically, Case Study 22 by Pierre 
Koenig. Indeed, this residence features many 
Mid-Century Modern characteristics, such as 
the flat roof, deep overhangs, walls of glass, 
casement windows, and the use of traditionally 
commercial materials like concrete block, steel 
beams and bullet lights. During the 1950s the 

nuclear threat was very real to many people, 
leading some to build bomb shelters as part 
of their homes. Lockenvitz’s house negated the 
need for a shelter; it is built almost completely 
of concrete – walls, floors and roof. Friends 
joked that a nuclear bomb wouldn’t have a 
chance against it! This was not the first con-
crete house built by the Lockenvitzes. Their first 
home on Cherry Lane in Tarrytown was also 
constructed of concrete.
	 A few alterations have been made by 
the current owner: he has had to replace 
metal fixtures, such as door handles, cabinet 
pulls, bath/shower enclosures and some light 
fixtures. All were replaced with period-appro-
priate selections. Most everything else is origi-
nal – kitchen cabinets, built-in buffet, bedroom 
built-ins, casement windows and balcony rail-
ings. The owner has taken great care to keep 
new elements sympathetic to the original and 
it shows. No doubt the Lockenvitz family could 
walk in and feel right at home.

–Marty Moulthrop

lockenvitz house   112 skyline drive
Owner: robert nash   built: 1955

dealey & david herndon

Congratulations to  

Mike Ward and his team!

Pioneer Farms gets  

better every day.

TWILIGHT 
TOUR

Shoehorn Design



Scott Hendler and Lulu Flores 
and

HENDLERLAW, P.C. 
support the preservation of 

Historic Austin

HENDLERLAW pursues the Asbestos 
Industry for justice and accountability 
throughout the United States and 
around the world on behalf of 
individuals battling Mesothelioma, 
the signature disease of Asbestos 
exposure. 

HENDLERLAW, P.C.
“You’re not alone”

If you or a family member has 
Mesothelioma, you’re not alone.  
Call HENDLERLAW.  We can help.

800-443-6353
www.mesothelioma-advice.com

or
www.hendlerlaw.com

we are glad

to be a part

of such a great event

Lin Team

Old Austin Realtor

Helping people save old Austin
one house at a time...

600 Bellevue Place
Austin Texas 78705
512 472 1930
LTeam@austin.rr.com
TheKinneyCompany.com

David Wilson
Garden Desi�n, Inc.

512 459 7909         www.dw�d.com

The J. Pinnelli Company

Janis & Joe Pinnelli

Supporting the Preservation 

of Historic Austin



Board of Directors 2007-2008

Officers
John Donisi............................................................. President 
Julian Read...................................................... President-Elect 
Mandy Dealey............................................. 1st Vice President 
Betsy Christian............................................2nd Vice President 
Susan Wittliff.......................................................... Secretary 
Kristen Wicke..........................................................Treasurer 
Dennis McDaniel................................ Immediate Past President 

Directors
Betty Baker, Kent Collins, Matt Curtis, Rebecca Davis, Sharon Dunn, Amy Erben, 

Sandra Frazier, Connie Green, Dealey Herndon, Kate Hersch, Courtney Hoffman, Amy 
Hornaday, Dennis Karbach, John Mayfield, Rosemary Morrow, Tere O’Connell, Kristy 
Ozmun, Greg Philips, Joe Pinnelli, Robert Pitman, Deanna Rickabaugh, John Rosato, 

Lindsay Rose, C. Aubrey Smith Jr., Bratten Thomason   

Waterloo PresidenT’s Council 
 James Armstrong & Larry Connelly, Jannis & Robert Baldwin, Penny & Dan Burck, Ann 
Butler, June & Mark Chandler, Cissie & Dillon Ferguson, Regan & William Gammon, III, 
Connie & Allen Green, Jan Bullock & Robert Green, Dealey & David Herndon, Clark 
& Courtney Hoffman, Meta Butler Hunt, Judith & Lewis Jones, Roger Joseph, Lowell 

Lebermann, Jr., Sue Brandt McBee, Leslie & Steve McConnico, Andrea & Dean McWil-
liams, Emily Moreland, Bettye & William Nowlin, C. Patrick Oles, Jr., Mr. & Mrs. Howard 
Parker, Cheryl & Walt Penn, Gay & Shannon Ratliff, Vickie Roan, Cheryl & John Sauder, 

Sue & C. Aubrey Smith, Jr., Bobbi & Morton Topfer, Louann & Larry Temple, Steffen & 
Elisabeth Waltz, Betty & Jim Wilson, Eva & Marvin Womack 

Voting Representatives
Michael Holleran.............................. UT School of Architecture
Sabrina Brown...................................................Inherit Austin
TBA.....................................Austin History Center Association
John Rosato......................................... Landmark Commission
Mike Ward......................................................Pioneer Farms

2007 Preservation Awards 
Heritage Society of Austin Salutes our 2007 Preservation Award Honorees. Presented 
annually to honor visionary approaches to preservation and long time commitments to 
maintaining Austin’s architectural, cultural and environmental heritage.

sue & frank mcbee visionary award
john philip donisi

Merit Awards for Properties
Curl-Crockett House
213 West 41st. Linda and Nicholas Van Bavel

Hopkins Homestead
1500 West 9th Street. Henry Brooks Family

bolm House
2309 Windsor Road. Nicole and William Kessler

sparks house 
1510 West Avenue. Paul Parson and Patrick Thompson

lambert’s downtown bBQ
401 W. 2nd Street. Lou Lambert and Larry McGuire

Cisco’s restaurant bakery and bar
1511 East 6th Street. Clovis Cisneros

huston-tillotson administration building
Huston-Tillotson University. President Larry Earvin
 
Merit Awards for Individuals and Organizations
pemberton preservation partners: 
Candace and John Volz, Susan and David Erickson, Gail Morriss, Janie Orr. 

friends of deep eddy: 
Leon Barish, president 

Travis County Delegation: 
Representatives Valinda Bolton, Dawnna Dukes, Donna Howard, Elliot Naishtat,  
Eddie Rodriguez, Mark Strama.

COUNCILMEMBER LEE LEFFINGWELL, City of Austin.



P l e a s e  r e m e m b e r  w h i l e  i n s i d e  t h e  h o m e s :
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Thank You to Our Sponsors!

Benefactors 
Franklin Bank
Bratten Thomason

Patrons 
Austin’s World of Rentals 
Crestview Doors
David Wilson Garden Design, Inc.
www.hendlerlaw.com
Dealey & David Herndon
Ginny’s Printing
Janis & Joe Pinnelli
Lin Team, Old Austin Realtor
Maxwell Locke & Ritter, LLP
Texas Gas Service

Friends 
Austin American-Statesman 
Austin Fine Properties – John Teinert
Dripping Springs Vodka
Friends of HSA
Beth & Tom Granger 
Independence Brewing 
John Mayfield
Rosemary Morrow
C. Aubrey Smith, Jr
Tito’s Vodka
William Gammon Insurance

...and many thanks to the following
2008 Heritage Homes Tour Homeowners
Will Hornaday and Shoehorn Design
Chaunda Johanson, Avec Amour
Lithoprint Company
Texas Gas Service
Kelly Shannon, 2 Blue Chairs
360 Condominiums
All Saints’ Episcopal Church
Walter Trisko
Winnie Noelke
Joe Kelly
Austin Modern 
Shannon Albright
Lainey Behrend
Kimberly Bratton
Roger Binkley
Dora Blount
Kent Collins
Jay Farrell
Dwayne Jones 
Leena El Omar
Pat Patten
Sydney Rubin
JC Schmeil
Chris Thurman
Riley Triggs
Victoria Turek
Pamela Wiggins

Austin Heritage Hunt
Who fought in the Pig War in 1841? Where are Bigfoot Wallace and Thomas
"Peg Leg" Ward buried? What is in a Sissy Burger at Dirty Martin's? 

Curious Heritage Hunters can undertake four different self-guided hunts that
explore the Lamar Area, Barton Springs Area, East Austin and The University
of Texas Campus. Participants will visit some of the most interesting historic and 
cultural sites of our city to seek out the answers to the hunt questions. 

Are you ready to accept the Austin Heritage Hunt challenge and
discover what makes Austin so special? 

Sleuths ages 12 and under who uncover the answers to these and other
intriguing questions are invited to celebrate their success and receive a
certificate as an official Heritage Hunter from Mayor Wynn or a Council
Member at City Hall in October 2008. 

To get started or for more info, visit www.heritagesocietyaustin.org then
hit the trail! 


